
   

 
Peace and Justice 
  Commission 
 

 

PEACE & JUSTICE COMMISSION MEETING  
Monday, February 5, 2024 – 7:00 p.m. 

South Berkeley Senior Center 
2939 Ellis St. Berkeley Ca, 94703 

 
AGENDA 

 
Mayor Arreguin:  Rashi Kersarwani:  Terry Taplin: 
    Sagar Pilania   Veta Jacqulin 
 
Ben Bartlett:   Kate Harrison  Sophie Hahn 
George Lippman  Diana Bohn   Nimrod Pitskar Elias 
 
Susan Wengraf:  Rigel Robinson:  Mark Humbert 
Robin Mencher 
 
BUSD: 
Grace Morizawa- Chair 

 
 
SECTION A. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
 

1. Roll Call 

2. Land Acknowledgement     

3. Announcements   

4. Comments from the Public (subject to time limits applicable to all speakers as necessary)   

5. Review and approval of meeting minutes  

6. Commission Updates & Chairperson’s Report  

7. Secretary’s Report (including status of passed items from previous meetings) 
 

SECTION B. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
8. Discussion and Update on the Peace and Justice Merger 

9. Discussion and Update on from the Gaza Peace Roundtable Subgroup. 

10. Discussion and Update on the November Roundtable Regarding Fukushima Waste Water 

 



   
Peace and Justice Commission 
Agenda – February 5, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

 
SECTION D.   COMMUNICATIONS   
 

11. No communications received. 
 

 
SECTION E.   BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
SECTION F.   ADJOURNMENT   
 
Attachments:  
 

A. January 2024 Draft Minutes  
B. Land Acknowledgement  
C. Commission Merger Memo 
D. Special Agenda Packet Council 6.15.21 
E. HWCAC and PJC Commission Merger 

 
Meeting Access: To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, 
including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services Specialist, at 981-

6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD), at least three (3) business days before the meeting date. 
 
Communications Disclaimer   
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact 
information are not required, but if included in any communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become 
part of the public record.  If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver 
communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee.  If you do not 
want your contact information included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication.  Please 
contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission or committee for further information.   
 
SB 343 Disclaimer   
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection at Old City Hall located at 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way, Berkeley, CA 94704. 
 
 
Commission Contact Information   
Okeya Vance-Dozier, Secretary   
Peace and Justice Commission   
City of Berkeley   
2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor   
Berkeley, CA  94704   
Ovance-dozier@cityofberkeley.info (email) 



   

Land Acknowledgement Statement 
 
 

The City of Berkeley recognizes that the community we live in was built on the 
territory 
of xučyun (Huchiun (Hooch-yoon)), the ancestral and unceded land of the 
Chochenyo 
(Cho-chen-yo)-speaking Ohlone (Oh-low-nee) people, the ancestors and 
descendants 
of the sovereign Verona Band of Alameda County. This land was and continues to 
be of 
great importance to all of the Ohlone Tribes and descendants of the Verona Band. 
As 
we begin our meeting tonight, we acknowledge and honor the original inhabitants 
of 
Berkeley, the documented 5,000-year history of a vibrant community at the West 
Berkeley Shellmound, and the Ohlone people who continue to reside in the East 
Bay. 
We recognize that Berkeley’s residents have and continue to benefit from the use 
and 
occupation of this unceded stolen land since the City of Berkeley’s incorporation 
in 
1878. As stewards of the laws regulating the City of Berkeley, it is not only vital 
that we 
recognize the history of this land, but also recognize that the Ohlone people are 
present 
members of Berkeley and other East Bay communities today. The City of Berkeley 
will 
continue to build relationships with the Lisjan Tribe and to create meaningful 
actions 
that uphold the intention of this land acknowledgement. 



   

 
Peace and Justice  
Commission 
 

2180 Milvia Street – 5th Floor • Berkeley • CA • 94704 • Tel. 510.981.7071 • TDD: 510.981.6903 • Fax: 510.981.7099 
 

Peace and Justice Commission 
January 8, 2023  

 
 

Draft MINUTES 
 

The meeting convened at 7:00 pm with Grace Morizawa (Chair) presiding. Okeya 
Vance-Dozier, Secretary. 
 
SECTION A. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
 
1. Roll Call 

Present: Lippman, Jacqulin, Morizawa, Bohn, Pilania, Elias, Mencher 
Absent:  
Excused:  
Leave of Absence:  

 
2. Announcements  

None 
 

3. Comments from the Public  

Public Attendance: 4 
Public Comments: 3 

 
4. Review and approval of meeting minutes  

Peace and Justice Commission approved minutes from 11/06/23. 
M/S/C: Lippman, Bohn 
Ayes: Morizawa, Jacqulin, Lippman, Bohn 
Noes:  
Abstain: Mencher, Elias, Pilania 
Absent:  
Excused:  

 
5. Commission Updates & Chairperson’s Report (No Action Taken): 

 
6. Secretary’s Report (No Action Taken) 

 
SECTION B. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
7. Discussion and Update on the Peace and Justice Merger 



   
Peace & Justice Commission 
Minutes – January 8, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Chair Morizawa at the advice of commissioners will send a letter to the council as it 
relates to the specifics and timeline of the merger. 
 
M/S/C: Bohn, Lippman 
Ayes: Lippman, Morizawa, Bohn. Jacqulin, Mencher, Elias, Pilania 
Noes:  
Abstain:  
Absent:  
Excused:  
 

8. Proposal for a Rountable/Workshop on the Community Action in Support of 
Peace and Justice in Israel and Palestine 
Commissioners will create a subcommittee to discuss specific topics and formatting 
of the roundtable/educational workshop for peace and justice in Israel and 
Palestine. Each commissioner will submit their ideas to be drafted and discussed 
within the subcommittee. Next scheduled meeting the subcommittee will present on 
their findings and a possible resolution. 
 
M/S/C: Morizawa, Jacqulin 
Ayes: Lippman, Bohn, Jacqulin, Morizawa, Elias, Mencher, Pilania 
Noes:  
Abstain:  
Absent:  
Excused:  
 

9. Discussion on the 2024 Meeting Calendar. 
2024 Calendar was approved. 
 
M/S/C: Lippman, Jacqulin 
Ayes: Lippman, Morizawa, Bohn. Jacqulin, Mencher, Elias, Pilania 
Noes:  
Abstain:  
Absent:  
Excused:  
 
 
 

SECTION C. COMMUNICATIONS 
10. No communications received prior to meeting. 

 
 
 
SECTION D. ADJOURNMENT 
 



   
Peace & Justice Commission 
Minutes – January 8, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:35 PM.  

M/S/C: Morizawa, Lippman 
Ayes: Lippman, Morizawa, Jacqulin, Bohn, Elias, Mencher, Pilania 
Noes:  
Abstain:  
Absent:  
Excused: 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
__________________________  
Okeya Vance-Dozier, Secretary  
Peace and Justice Commission 



Human Welfare and Community 
Action Commission

2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5400    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 

Communication 
November 6, 2023 

To: Peace and Justice Commission 

From: Mary-Claire Katz, Human Welfare and Community Action Commission Secretary 

Subject: Merging of Human Welfare and Community Action Commission (HWCAC) and 
Peace and Justice Commission 

BACKGROUND 
On June 15, 2021, City Council directed the City Manager to examine a multi-phased approached to the 
consolidation of City commissions, including a merger of the HWCAC and the Peace and Justice 
Commission. 

The HWCAC is established by Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Chapter 3.78. BMC Chapter 3.78.070 (A) 
states that the “commission shall function as the Board of the Community Action Agency as set forth in 
California Government Code Sections 12754 and 12756, the terms of which are incorporated herein by 
reference”, and BMC Chapter 3.78.070 (E) further states that the commission will “advise the City Council 
on all matters affecting the social welfare of the community and its citizens”. 

The Peace and Justice Commission is established by BMC Chapter 3.68. BMC Chapter 3.68.070. (A) 
states that the Peace and Justice Commission will “advise the Berkeley City Council and the Berkeley 
Unified School Board on all matters relating to the City of Berkeley’s role in issues of peace and social 
justice, including, but not limited to the issues of ending the arms race, abolishing nuclear weapons, 
support for human rights and self-determination throughout the world, and the reallocation of our national 
resources so that money now spent on war and preparation of war is spent on fulfilling human needs and 
the promotion of peace.” 

The merging of these two commissions was delayed due to conflicting municipal code requirements, as 
well as ensuring that the requirements of Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) funding were able to 
bet met upon the merger. City staff have determined that the commissions are able to be merged without 
disrupting the responsibilities of each respective commission. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND TIMELINE 
City staff are proceeding with Council’s direction to merge the HWCAC and Peace and Justice 
Commission. This merger will maintain the integrity of each respective commissions’ core values as well 
as any additional legal requirements and responsibilities that the commissions may have in their municipal 
codes and other legislation. The HWCAC acts as a tripartite board for the City’s CSBG funding, which 
includes several unique responsibilities, including elected low-income representation, report reviews and 
approvals, and funding recommendations.  



November 6, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5400    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 

The Peace and Justice Commission is responsible for activities such as Nuclear Free Berkeley Act 
Waivers and the Oppressive States Contracting Prohibition.  

Tentative Commission Merger Timeline 

November – December, 2023 
• City staff reviews each commission BMC, including any additional roles and responsibilities not

included in BMC and bylaws.

January, 2024 
• City staff drafts and finalizes BMC for merged commission, with review from:

o City Clerk
o HWCAC Secretary
o Peace and Justice Secretary, and
o CalCAPA.

March, 2024 
• New commission BMC presented to Council for first ordinance reading.

April, 2024 
• New commission BMC presented to Council for second ordinance reading and establishment of

new commission.

The new commission’s enabling legislation will be effective 30 days after the second ordinance reading. 
During this time, City staff and commissioners will finalize the details of the merger and prepare the new 
commission schedule. 

Please contact the Peace and Justice secretary or the HWCAC secretary with any feedback or questions 
regarding the merging of the HWCAC and the Peace and Justice Commission. 

CONTACT  
Okeya Vance-Dozier, Peace and Justice Secretary, ovance-dozier@berkeleyca.gov 
Mary-Claire Katz, HWCAC Secretary, mkatz@berkeleyca.gov 

Attachments: 
A. Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery, June 15, 2021.
B. HWCAC Berkeley Municipal Code
C. Peace and Justice Municipal Code



Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 1 

P R O C L AM AT I O N  
C AL L I N G A S PE C I AL  M E E TI NG  O F T HE

B E R K E LE Y C I T Y  C O U N CI L  
In accordance with the authority in me vested, I do hereby call the Berkeley City Council in special 

session as follows: 

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 
4:00 PM 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 
Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – TERRY TAPLIN  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting 
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be 
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety 
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting 
location available.   

Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on 
Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx. 

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  Please use this URL 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87908681987.  If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the 
drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise 
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.  

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 879 0868 1987. If 
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the 
Chair.  

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules 
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email 
council@cityofberkeley.info. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark 
Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the 
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time 
to be specified. 

1

ATTACHMENT A

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87908681987
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info


 

 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 2 

 
Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  
 

Action Calendar 
 The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items 

moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on 
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is 
taken up during the Action Calendar. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak use the "raise hand" function to determine 
the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two 
minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the 
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. The Presiding Officer may, with the consent of 
persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 
 

Action Calendar – Old Business 
 

1.  Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery 
From: Councilmember Droste (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor), Mayor Arreguin (Co-
Sponsor) (Reviewed by the Agenda & Rules Committee) (Continued from May 25, 
2021) 
Recommendation:  
1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the enabling 
legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a phased 
approach. Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless 
Services Panel of Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond 
Oversight Committee first, and request that the City Manager bring back changes to 
the enabling legislation to implement these consolidated commissions. Phase 2: All 
other Commissions as proposed in the report. As staff is able to make 
recommendations on consolidation, they can bring those recommendations forward 
one by one. 
2. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated 
commissions and the effective date of the changes.  
3. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment 
Commission and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy areas of 
the merged commissions.  
4. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be composed of only 
Mayor and Council appointees.  
5. Refer to City Manager and Commissions the following additional considerations: 
- Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 
how to handle. - Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by 
City Council, through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, 
and by what means they might be merged/adjusted. - What elements of each 
Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant topics/issues not currently 
covered that might be added to a more comprehensive and/or relevant merged 
Commission’s charter. - Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a 
greater number of members. - The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for 

2

ATTACHMENT A



Action Calendar – Old Business 

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 3 

appointment to the merged Commission. - The possibility of recommended or 
required Standing Committees of the Merged Commission. - Volunteer workload and 
capacity given scope of Commission’s charter 
Policy Committee Recommendation: Make a Qualified Positive Recommendation to 
City Council to: 1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes 
to the enabling legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in 
a phased approach. Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless 
Commission/Homeless Services Panel of Experts and Housing Advisory 
Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight Committee first, and request that the City 
Manager bring back changes to the enabling legislation to implement these 
consolidated commissions. Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed in the 
report. As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, they can bring 
those recommendations forward one by one. 2. Refer to the Commissions impacted 
a process to determine the charge/responsibilities of the newly merged commissions, 
and bring Commission input to the appropriate Policy Committees (as proposed by 
Vice-Mayor Droste in 4/5/21 submittal) for further recommendations to the City 
Manager on revised charge/responsibilities of merged commissions. 3. Refer to staff 
to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated commissions and 
the effective date of the changes. 4. Consider establishing 18 members on the new 
Climate and Environment Commission and establishing specific subcommittees 
focused on the policy areas of the merged commissions.5. The Peace, Justice and 
Human Welfare Commission will be comprised of only Mayor and Council 
appointees. 6. Refer Councilmember Hahn questions to City Manager and 
Commissions: “Commissions to Combine/Merge - Suggested Considerations” 
- Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine

how to handle. - Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by
City Council, through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter,
and by what means they might be merged/adjusted. - What elements of each
Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant topics/issues not currently
covered that might be added to a more comprehensive and/or relevant merged
Commission’s charter. - Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a
greater number of members. - The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for
appointment to the merged Commission. - The possibility of recommended or
required Standing Committees of the Merged Commission - Volunteer workload and
capacity given scope of Commission’s charter.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, (510) 981-7180

Public Comment - Items on this agenda only 

Adjournment 
I hereby request that the City Clerk of the City of Berkeley cause personal notice to be given to each 
member of the Berkeley City Council on the time and place of said meeting, forthwith. 

3

ATTACHMENT A



Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
and caused the official seal of the City of Berkeley to be 
affixed on this 3rd day of June, 2021. 

Jesse Arreguin, Mayor 

Public Notice – this Proclamation serves as the official agenda for this meeting. 
ATTEST: 

Date:  June 3, 2021 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be
barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx 

and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City 
Clerk Department for further information. 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be posted on the City's website at http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. 

4

ATTACHMENT A

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


 

 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 5 

Communications 
Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and 
Commissions for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to Council are 
public record. Copies of individual communications are available for viewing through Records Online. 

Item #1: Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery 
1. Holly Scheider 
 

5

ATTACHMENT A

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline/


1

Lori Droste
Berkeley Vice Mayor
 

ACTION CALENDAR
June 15, 2021

(Continued from May 25, 2021)
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
 
From: Councilmember Lori Droste (Author), Councilmembers Rigel Robinson 

(Co-Sponsor), Rashi Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor) and Mayor Jesse Arreguín 
(Co-Sponsor)

 
Subject: Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery
 
RECOMMENDATION
1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the
enabling legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a
phased approach.

Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless Services Panel
of Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight
Committee first, and request that the City Manager bring back changes to the
enabling legislation to implement these consolidated commissions.

Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed below.
As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, they can bring those
recommendations forward one by one.

New Commission Name Former Commissions to be Reorganized

Commission on Climate and the 
Environment

Zero Waste, Energy, Community Environmental Advisory, and 
Animal Care

Page 1 of 13

7

ATTACHMENT A

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
01

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
Special Meeting Item



2

Parks, Recreation, Waterfront (special 
Marina subcommittee)

Children, Youth, and Recreation and Parks and Waterfront

Peace, Justice, and Human Welfare1 Peace and Justice and Human Welfare, Community Action 
Commissions

Public Health Commission & Sugar 
Sweetened Beverage Panel of Experts 

Community Health Commission and Sugar Sweetened Beverage 
Panel of Experts

Housing Advisory Commission Measure O and Housing Advisory Commission

Homeless Services Panel of Experts Homeless Commission and Measure P Homeless Services Panel 
of Experts

Public Works and Transportation Public Works and Transportation

Planning Planning and Cannabis

All other commissions will maintain their current structure: Aging, Library Board of Trustees, Civic Arts, 
Disability, Commission on the Status of Women, Design Review Committee, Disaster and Fire Safety, BIDs, Fair 
Campaign Practices and Open Government, Redistricting, Landmarks Preservation, Labor, Loan Adjustments 
Board, Personnel, Planning, Police Review/Accountability, Reimagining Public Safety, Mental Health, Zoning 
Adjustments Board, and Youth

2. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated 
commissions and the effective date of the changes. 

3. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment Commission 
and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy areas of the merged 
commissions. 

4. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be composed of only Mayor 
and Council appointees. 

5. Refer to City Manager and Commissions the following additional considerations:
- Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 

how to handle.  
- Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by City Council, 

through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, and by what 
means they might be merged/adjusted 

1 Members will be appointed by Council and membership should adhere to Government Code Section 12736(e); 12750(a)(2) and 
12751.

Page 2 of 13

8

ATTACHMENT A



3

- What elements of each Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant 
topics/issues not currently covered that might be added to a more 
comprehensive and/or relevant merged Commission’s charter.  

- Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a greater number of 
members.  

- The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for appointment to the merged 
Commission.  

- The possibility of recommended or required Standing Committees of the Merged 
Commission  

- Volunteer workload and capacity given scope of Commission’s charter

Policy Committee Oversight2 Commissions

Agenda and Rules 1. Fair Campaign Practices/Open Government 
Commission

2. Personnel Board 

Budget and Finance (Any legislation that requires funding)

Public Safety 1. Disaster and Fire Safety Commission
2. Police Accountability Board/Police Review 

Commission
3. Reimagining Public Safety Task Force 

Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation 
and the Environment

1. Commission on the Environment
2. Parks, Recreation and Waterfront with Marina 

subcommittee
3. Public Works and Transportation 

Land Use and Economic Development 1. Measure O Housing Commission
2. Planning Commission
3. Labor
4. Civic Arts Commission 

Health, Equity, Life Enrichment, and 
Community

1. Peace, Justice, and Civil Rights 
2. Health and Sugar Sweetened Beverage Panel of 

Experts 
3. Homeless Services Panel of Experts 
4. Mental Health Commission (state/federal mandate)
5. Commission on the Status of Women
6. Disability Commission

2 Primary policy committee oversight but legislation may be referred to multiple policy committees.

Page 3 of 13

9

ATTACHMENT A



4

Other Commissions:  Zoning Adjustments Board (DRC), Landmarks Preservation, Board of Library Trustees, 
BIDs, Independent Redistricting Commission, Loan Administration Board

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
On April 5, 2021, the Agenda and Rules Committee made a qualified positive 
recommendation to City Council to:
1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the enabling
legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a phased
approach.

Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless Services Panel of 
Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight Committee first, 
and request that the City Manager bring back changes to the enabling legislation to 
implement these consolidated commissions. 

Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed below. 
As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, they can bring those 
recommendations forward one by one. 

New Commission Name 
(suggested)

Former Commissions to be Reorganized

Commission on Climate and the 
Environment 

Zero Waste, Energy, Community Environmental 
Advisory, and Animal Care

Parks, Recreation, Waterfront 
(special Marina subcommittee)

Children, Youth, and Recreation and Parks and 
Waterfront

Peace, Justice, and Human Welfare Peace and Justice Commission and Human Welfare 
and Community Action Commission 

Public Health Commission & Sugar 
Sweetened Beverage Panel of 
Experts 

Community Health Commission and Sugar Sweetened 
Beverage Panel of Experts

Housing Advisory Commission Measure O and Housing Advisory Commission

Homeless Services Panel of 
Experts

Homeless Commission and Measure P Homeless 
Services Panel of Experts

Page 4 of 13

10

ATTACHMENT A



5

Public Works and Transportation Public Works and Transportation

Planning Planning and Cannabis

All other commissions will maintain their current structure:  Aging, Library Board of 
Trustees, Civic Arts, Disability, Commission on the Status of Women, Design Review 
Committee, Disaster and Fire Safety, BIDs, Fair Campaign Practices and Open Government, 
Redistricting, Landmarks Preservation, Labor, Loan Adjustments Board, Personnel, Planning, 
Police Review/Accountability, Reimagining Public Safety, Mental Health, Zoning Adjustments 
Board, and Youth

2. Refer to the Commissions impacted a process to determine the 
charge/responsibilities of the newly merged commissions, and bring Commission input 
to the appropriate Policy Committees (as proposed by Vice-Mayor Droste in 4/5/21 
submittal) for further recommendations to the City Manager on revised 
charge/responsibilities of merged commissions. 

3. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated 
commissions and the effective date of the changes. 

4. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment Commission 
and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy areas of the merged 
commissions.

5. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be comprised of only Mayor 
and Council appointees. 

6. Refer Councilmember Hahn questions to City Manager and Commissions: 
“Commissions to Combine/Merge - Suggested Considerations”

 Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 
how to handle

 Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by City Council, 
through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, and by what 
means they might be merged/adjusted

 What elements of each Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant 
topics/issues not currently covered that might be added to a more comprehensive 
and/or relevant merged Commission’s charter.

 Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a greater number of 
members.

 The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for appointment to the merged 
Commission.

 The possibility of recommended or required Standing Committees of the Merged 
Commission

 Volunteer workload and capacity given scope of Commission’s charter

Page 5 of 13

11

ATTACHMENT A



6

PROBLEM/SUMMARY STATEMENT
Commissions provide an important mechanism for residents to shape public policy and 
provide input on City business. However, the City of Berkeley maintains far more 
commissions than other cities of similar size, with a significant investment of City 
resources to staff all 37 commissions. Some commission secretaries report spending 
upwards of 20+ hours per week on commission business, which takes valuable time 
away from addressing other pressing City priorities. The local public health emergency 
created by the global COVID-19 pandemic has required City staff to shift to new roles 
and maintain an Emergency Operations Center since January 2020; recovery from the 
pandemic will continue to demand the full attention of our City staff for the foreseeable 
future. Given the uncertainties that our City faces in recovering from the COVID-19 
pandemic and the demands that this recovery places on our City staff, it is an 
appropriate time to consider how best to consolidate our commissions in a manner that 
helps the City to achieve its core mission.   

REITERATION OF PRINCIPLES
Commissions are a fundamental part of the City’s policymaking process. Members of 
boards and commissions provide an invaluable service to our City. They advise the City 
Council on a wide variety of subjects by making recommendations on important policy 
matters. Without the assistance of the various boards and commissions, the City 
Council could give many complex and significant matters only a perfunctory review. The 
detailed studies and considered advice of boards and commissions are often catalysts 
for innovative programs and improved services. Serving on a board or commission can 
be a rewarding experience for community service– minded residents. It is an excellent 
way to participate in the functioning of local government and to make a personal 
contribution to the improvement of our community. Making local government effective 
and responsive is everybody’s responsibility. 

● The Public Works Commission, for example, develops the City’s five year paving
plan which they then present to City Council for approval. Through extensive
community outreach and research, the Commission identifies the streets most in
need of repaving.

● With the passage of Measure D in 2014, a Panel of Experts on Sugar-Sweetened
Beverages has guided the City’s spending of over $5 million in revenue
generated from the Measure. Those dollars have bolstered local public
campaigns and education initiatives.

Page 6 of 13

12

ATTACHMENT A



7

These are merely two examples of the powerful role that Commissions play in City 
policymaking.      

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Current Commission Structure
The City of Berkeley has approximately thirty-seven commissions overseen by city 
administration, most of which have at least nine members and who are appointed by 
individual councilmembers. These commissions were intended to be a forum for public 
participation beyond what is feasible at the City Council, so that issues that come before 
the City Council can be adequately vetted.

Some commissions are required by charter or mandated by voter approval or 
state/federal mandate. Those commissions are the following:

1. Board of Library Trustees (charter)
2. Business Improvement Districts (state mandate)
3. Civic Arts Commission (charter)
4. Community Environmental Advisory Commission (state/federal mandate--

CUPA)
5. Fair Campaign Practices Commission/Open Government (ballot measure)
6. Homeless Services Panel of Experts (ballot measure)
7. Housing Advisory Commission (state/federal mandate)
8. Human Welfare and Community Action (state/federal mandate)
9. Measure O Bond Oversight Committee (ballot measure)
10. Mental Health Commission (state/federal mandate)
11. Personnel (charter)Police Review Commission (ballot measure)
12. Sugar-Sweetened Beverages (ballot measure)

Berkeley must have its own mental health commission because of its independent 
Mental Health Division. In order to receive services, the City needs to have to have an 
advisory board. Additionally, Berkeley’s Community Environmental Advisory 
Commission is a required commission in order to oversee Certified Unified Program 
Agency (CUPA) under California’s Environmental Protection Agency. Additionally, some 
commissions serve other purposes beyond policy advisories. The Children, Youth and 
Recreation Commission, Housing Advisory Commission, and the Human Welfare and 
Community Action Commission advise Council on community agency funding. 
However, some of the aforementioned quasi-judicial and state/federal mandated 
commissions do not need to stand independently and can be combined to meet 
mandated goals.

The Importance of Commissions

Page 7 of 13

13

ATTACHMENT A



8

Commissions serve a vital role in the City of Berkeley’s rich process of resident 
engagement. An analysis of agendas over the past several years shows that the 
commissions have created policy that have benefited the community in meaningful and 
important ways. In 2020, 14 of the 16 commission items submitted to Council passed.  
From 2016-2020, an average of 34 items were submitted by commissions to Council for 
consideration.
 
The City’s Health, Housing and Community Development department serves an 
important role in addressing COVID-19, racial disparities, inequitable health outcomes, 
affordable housing, and other important community programs. Additionally, Health, 
Housing, and Community Development also staffs ten commissions, more than many 
cities of Berkeley’s size. Council needs to wrestle with these tradeoffs to ensure that we 
seek the maximum benefit for all of the Berkeley community, particularly our most 
vulnerable.
 
Commission Structures in Neighboring Jurisdictions
In comparison to neighboring jurisdictions of similar size, Berkeley has significantly 
more commissions. The median number of commissions for these cities is 12 and the 
average is 15.
 

 Comparable                  
Bay Area City

Population 
(est.)

Number of 
Commissions Links

 Berkeley 121,000 37
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-
_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf

 Antioch 112,000 6https://www.antiochca.gov/government/boards-commissions/

 Concord 130,000 14
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-
Commi

 Daly City 107,000 7
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Inf
ormation/boards.htm

 Fairfield 117,000 7https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/gov/comms/default.asp

 Fremont 238,000 15https://www.fremont.gov/76/Boards-Commissions-Committees

 Hayward 160,000 12https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions

Page 8 of 13

14

ATTACHMENT A

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf
https://www.antiochca.gov/government/boards-commissions/
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-Commi
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-Commi
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Information/boards.htm
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Information/boards.htm
https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/gov/comms/default.asp
https://www.fremont.gov/76/Boards-Commissions-Committees
https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions


9

 Richmond 110,000 29https://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/256/Boards-and-Commissions

 San Mateo 105,000 7https://www.cityofsanmateo.org/60/Commissions-Boards

 Sunnyvale 153,000 10https://sunnyvale.ca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=22804

 Vallejo 122,000 17http://www.ci.vallejo.ca.us/cms/one.aspx?pageId=22192

 
To understand the impact on various departments and staffing capacity, the following 
table shows which departments are responsible for overseeing various commissions.
 
Staffing and Resources Supporting Berkeley’s Current Commission Structure

Commission Name
Overseeing Department (Total Commissions in 

Department)

Animal Care Commission City Manager (8)

Civic Arts Commission City Manager (8)

Commission on the Status of Women City Manager (8)

Elmwood BID Advisory Board City Manager (8)

Loan Administration Board City Manager (8)

Peace and Justice Commission City Manager (8)

Solano Ave BID Advisory Board City Manager (8)

Cannabis Commission Planning (7)

Community Environmental Advisory Commission Planning (7)

Design Review Committee Planning (7)

Energy Commission Planning (7)

Landmarks Preservation Commission Planning (7)

Planning Commission Planning (7)

Zoning Adjustments Board Planning (7)

Page 9 of 13

15

ATTACHMENT A

https://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/256/Boards-and-Commissions
https://www.cityofsanmateo.org/60/Commissions-Boards
https://sunnyvale.ca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=22804
http://www.ci.vallejo.ca.us/cms/one.aspx?pageId=22192


10

Children, Youth, and Recreation Commission Parks (3)

Parks and Waterfront Commission Parks (3)

Youth Commission Parks (3)

Commission on Aging Health, Housing, and Community Services (HHCS) 
(10)

Commission on Labor HHCS (10)

Community Health Commission HHCS (10)

Homeless Commission HHCS (10)

Homeless Services Panel of Experts HHCS(10)

Housing Advisory Commission HHCS (10)

Human Welfare & Community Action Commission HHCS (10)

Measure O Bond Oversight Committee HHCS (10)

Mental Health Commission HHCS (10)

Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts HHCS (10)

Disaster and Fire Safety Commission Fire (1)

Commission on Disability Public Works (4)

Public Works Commission Public Works (4)

Transportation Commission Public Works (4)

Zero Waste Commission Public Works (4)

Fair Campaign Practices Commission/Open Government 
Commission

City Attorney (1)

Personnel Board Human Resources (1)

Page 10 of 13

16

ATTACHMENT A



11

Police Review Commission/Police Accountability Board Police Review Commission/Police Accountability 
Board Staff

Reimagining Public Safety Task Force City Manager *(8) and BPD (2)

Board of Library Trustees Library (1)

Gray=charter
Red=state/federal mandate
Yellow=quasi-judicial
Blue=ballot initiative
Orange=state/federal mandate and quasi-judicial
Green=quasi-judicial and ballot initiative

The departments that staff more than five commissions are Health, Housing, and 
Community Services (10 commissions), Planning (7 commissions), and the City 
Manager’s department (8 commissions). At the same time, some smaller departments 
(e.g. the City Attorney’s office) may be impacted just as meaningfully if they have fewer 
staff and larger individual commission workloads.

Policy Committee Structure Expands Opportunities for Public Input
With the recent addition of policy committees, proposed legislation is now vetted by 
councilmembers in these forums. Each policy committee is focused on a particular 
content area aligned with the City of Berkeley’s strategic plan and is staffed and an 
advisory policy body to certain city departments.  Members of the public are able to 
provide input at these committees as well.  The policy committees currently have the 
following department alignment:

Department and Policy Committee alignment
1. Agenda and Rules–all departments
2. Budget and Finance–City Manager, Clerk, Budget, and Finance
3. Land Use and Economic Development–Clerk, Planning, HHCS, City

Attorney, and City Manager (OED)
4. Public Safety–Clerk, City Manager, Police, and Fire
5. Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment and

Sustainability (Clerk, City Manager, Planning, Public Works, and Parks)
6. Health, Equity, Life Enrichment, and Community (Clerk, City Manager,

HHCS)

Staffing Costs
Based upon preliminary calculations of staff titles and salary classifications, the average 
commission staff secretary makes roughly $60-$65/hour. Based upon recent interviews 
with secretaries and department heads, individual commission secretaries work 

Page 11 of 13

17

ATTACHMENT A



12

anywhere from 8-80 hours a month staffing and preparing for commission meetings. To 
illustrate this example, a few examples are listed below.
 

Commission Step 5 Rate 
of Pay

Reported 
Hours a Month

Total Direct Cost of 
Commission per Month

Animal Care $70.90 8 $567.20

Landmarks Preservation 
Commission

$57.96 80 $4,636.80
 

Design Review Commission $52.76 60 $3,165.60
 

Peace and Justice $60.82 32 $1,946.24

 
It is extremely challenging to estimate a specific cost of commissions in the aggregate 
because of the varying workload but a safe estimate of salary costs dedicated to 
commissions would be in the six-figure range.
 
Many commissions--particularly quasi-judicial and land use commissions– require more 
than one staff member to be present and prepare reports for commissions. For 
example, Zoning Adjustment Board meetings often last five hours or more and multiple 
staff members spend hours preparing for hearings. The Planning Department indicates 
that in addition to direct hours, additional commission-related staff time adds an extra 
33% staff time.  Using the previous examples, this means that the Landmarks 
Preservation Commission would cost the city over $6,000 in productivity while the 
Design Review Commission would cost the City over $4,000 a month. 
 
Productivity Losses and Administrative Burden
Current productivity losses are stark because of the sheer amount of hours of staffing 
time dedicated to commissions. As an example, in 2019 one of the City of Berkeley’s 
main homeless outreach workers staffed a commission within the City Manager’s 
department. She spent approximately 32 hours a month working directly on commission 
work. While this is not a commentary on a particular commission, this work directly 
impacted her ability to conduct homeless outreach. 
 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Page 12 of 13

18

ATTACHMENT A



13

At a time when the City needs to demonstrate efficiency and fiscal restraint, the current 
commission structure is costly and duplicative. At the same time, civic engagement and 
commission work absolutely deserve an important role in Berkeley. Consequently, this 
legislation retains commissions but centers on overall community benefit, staff 
productivity, and associated costs. This is imperative to address, especially in light of 
COVID-19 and community demands for reinvestment in important social services.

FISCAL IMPACTS 
Significant savings associated with reduced staffing.

CONTACT
Vice Mayor Lori Droste 510-981-7180

Page 13 of 13

19

ATTACHMENT A



3.78.010 
3.78.020 
3.78.030 
3.78.040 
3.78.050 
3.78.060 
3.78.070 
3.78.080 
3.78.090 

Chapter 3.78 
HUMAN WELFARE AND COMMUNITY ACTION COMMISSION 

Sections: 

Creation of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission. 
Term of office. 
Vacancy and removal. 
Temporary vacancies. 
Officers, meetings and procedures. 
Social welfare defined. 
Functions of the commission. 
Elections for representatives of the poor. 
Bylaws of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission. 

3.78.010 Creation of the Human Welfare and Community Action 
Commission. 

A Berkeley Human Welfare and Community Action Commission is hereby created. The membership of such 
commission shall be fifteen: 

A. Nine of the members shall be appointed by Berkeley City Councilmembers, in accordance with the Fair
Representation Ordinance.

B. Six of the members shall be representatives of the poor, to be elected two from each of three districts as
established by the City Council and shown on the map attached hereto, made a part hereof and marked "Exhibit
A" (see Ch. 3.999).

C. The community service block grant (CSBG) target area shall comprise the total area from which three election
districts are drawn. Each district will have approximately equal numbers of poverty families utilizing data from the
1980 Census.

1. Four of the nine members of the commission appointed by the council shall be members or officials of
business, industry, labor, religious, welfare, education, or major groups and interests in the community, as
required by California Government Code Sections 12736(e), 12750(a)(2), and 12751, the language of which is
incorporated herein by reference.

2. Representatives of private sector organizations shall be empowered to speak and act on behalf of the
organizations they represent in connection with the board’s business. (Ord. 6011-NS § 1, 1990)

Ch. 3.78 Human Welfare and Community Action Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 1 of 6

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT B

https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/3.999
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/CA/GOV/12736(e)
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/CA/GOV/12750(a)(2)
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/CA/GOV/12751


3.78.020 Term of office. 

The term of office of each elected member, other than specifically provided herein, shall be four years from the 
date of the elections; no person shall serve for more than two full elected terms, or eight years. 

The term of office of each appointed member shall be as provided in B.M.C. 2.04.075. (Ord. 6225-NS § 1, 1993: 
Ord. 6011-NS § 2, 1990) 

3.78.030 Vacancy and removal. 

A. Vacancies on said commission shall be filled in accordance with the provisions outlined in Section 3.78.010
herein. Vacancies on the board shall result when a member notifies the City Clerk of their resignation, or when an
elected board member moves and establishes residence outside of their election district.

B. When the position of an appointed board member is vacant, the original appointing councilmember shall fill
the vacancy, the new appointee serving to finish the unexpired term of the appointment. Vacancies in any elected
commission position shall be filled by an appropriate elected alternate; when no alternate is available, the vacancy
shall be filled by the remaining elected commission members, who shall recommend to the council the person to
fill out the term of the appointment.

C. An elected member of the commission shall also be removed when they are absent from three consecutive
regular meetings of the commission. After a member has been absent from two consecutive regular meetings, the
secretary advises the member that absence from three consecutive meetings of the commission will result in
automatic termination. There is no provision for excused absences. Within one week of the third consecutive
absence the commission secretary notifies the City Clerk of the three absences. The appointment expires on the
date the fact of the third absence is reported to the City Clerk. Within one week the City Clerk notifies the
commission member that their term has expired and the councilmember or council, as appropriate, that a
vacancy exists on the board and that an appointment should be made to fill such vacancy. (Ord. 6011-NS § 3,
1990)

3.78.040 Temporary vacancies. 

A member of the commission may take a temporary leave of absence of up to three months in duration, during 
which time a temporary vacancy shall exist. During the period of such temporary vacancy in an elected position, 
the elected alternate shall serve in the place of the regular representative. If there is no alternate for the 
commission member, a temporary appointment shall be made by the remaining representatives of the poor. 
During the period of such temporary vacancy in an appointed position, the appointing councilmember upon 
proper notice may make a temporary appointment leave of absence, the member shall automatically resume full 
membership on the board to the end of their term. (Ord. 6011-NS § 4, 1990) 

Ch. 3.78 Human Welfare and Community Action Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 2 of 6

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT B

https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/2.04.075


3.78.050 Officers, meetings and procedures. 

A. The commission shall elect one of its members chairperson and one of its members vice-chairperson, who
shall hold office for one year or unless their terms as members of the commission shall expire sooner and until
their successors are elected. The chairperson and vice-chairperson shall be elected during the first quarter of each
calendar year. An alternate may not serve as an officer of the board.

B. The commission shall establish a regular place and time for meeting. All meetings shall be noticed as required
by law and shall be scheduled in a way to allow for maximum input from the public. The frequency of meetings
shall be as determined by City Council resolution. The scheduling of special meetings in addition to those
established by City Council resolution, except special meetings that take the place of cancelled regular meetings,
shall be subject to approval by the City Council. A request for a special meeting shall include the reason for the
proposed meeting and should be expedited on the City Council’ s agenda, or in the alternative, placed before the
Agenda Committee for approval.

C. A quorum shall be one member more than fifty percent of the non-vacant seats on the commission. The
commission shall keep an accurate record of its proceedings and transactions and shall submit an annual report
to the City Council, with a copy to the City Manager.

D. All committees and subcommittees of this commission shall fairly reflect the composition of the commission.
(Ord. 6901-NS § 1, 2006: Ord. 6011-NS § 5, 1990)

3.78.060 Social welfare defined. 

"Social Welfare" as used in this chapter, means that endeavor which is concerned with community-wide and group 
interests rather than with needs of individual citizens and embraces such areas, among others, as race relations, 
interfaith relations, special needs of the family, children, youth and the aged, and the way in which people live and 
work together. (Ord. 6011-NS § 6, 1990) 

3.78.070 Functions of the commission. 

The functions of the commission shall be as follows: 

A. The commission shall function as the Board of the Community Action Agency as set forth in California
Government Code Sections 12754 and 12756, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference;

B. Identify social welfare needs of the community and create a citizen awareness of these needs;

C. Encourage improved standards of social welfare services, both public and private, and in so doing, encourage
coordination and provide advice and assistance to organizations in the field of social welfare in the City; cooperate
with regional organizations; encourage the development of programs designed to improve the social welfare of

Ch. 3.78 Human Welfare and Community Action Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 3 of 6

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT B

https://berkeley.municipal.codes/CA/GOV/12754
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/CA/GOV/12756


the community; within staff limitations, collect, maintain and interpret social welfare information and statistics for 
the use of citizens and organizations in the City; 

D. Identify social welfare standards made available by other social welfare agencies, provide public information
with reference to such services, and within staff limitations, render a referral service;

E. Advise the City Council on all matters affecting the social welfare of the community and its citizens;

F. Render advice and assistance to other City boards and commissions, to City departments and to private
agencies on matters of social welfare;

G. Identify and study existing and potential areas of interracial friction and tension which are detrimental to the
general welfare of the community, and to recommend corrective measures; to encourage and offer conferences
and conciliation among groups and elements of the community who are seeking to arrive at voluntary solutions to
such problems;

H. Prepare such publications and results of study and research which will tend to promote good will and
minimize or eliminate discrimination based on race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry. Such publications
and results of study and research shall be issued and disseminated only after approval by the City Council;

I. Receive private donations and administer any trust declared or created for any charitable or social welfare
purpose, and supervise and direct the disbursement of any public funds which may be set apart or acquired all in
the manner provided by the City Council;

J. Perform such other functions and duties as may be directed by the City Council or as may be directed by the
City Council or prescribed or authorized by any ordinance of the City;

K. In prescribing the above duties and functions of the commission, it is not the intent of the council to duplicate
or overlap the functions, duties or responsibilities heretofore or hereafter assigned to any other City board or
commission or to a City board or commission or to a City department. As to such functions or responsibilities
above set forth which are partially or wholly the responsibilities of another board or commission or of a
department of the City, the commission will render assistance and advice to such board, commission or
department as may be requested. (Ord. 6011-NS § 7, 1990)

3.78.080 Elections for representatives of the poor. 

A. Elections for representatives of the poor shall be held biennially in the month of November in the even
numbered years, commencing in November, 1988. Said election shall be in accordance with procedures as may be
adopted by the City Council.

B. Elections for representatives of the poor shall not be held on the day of general elections.

C. If there are no qualified candidates in a district, the remaining representatives of the poor, acting alone, shall
select a person to fill the vacancy until the next election, at which time the vacancy shall appear on the ballot to fill

Ch. 3.78 Human Welfare and Community Action Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 4 of 6

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT B



any existing and remaining unexpired term. The name of the selected representative shall be submitted to the City 
Council for confirmation. Qualification for candidacy for representatives of the poor shall be in accordance with 
federal and state guidelines, and include residency within the district from which the representative is elected or 
selected. 

D. For the 1988 election only, in each of the districts the candidate receiving the highest number of votes will
serve four years terms, and the candidate receiving the second highest number of votes will serve two year terms.
The person receiving the third and fourth highest number of votes in each district will serve as two alternates,
serving terms of four and two years, respectively.

E. For the 1990 election the seats of the representatives of the poor elected in 1988 for two year terms will be
up for election, the representatives then elected to serve for four year terms; for the 1992 election the seats of the
representatives of the poor elected in 1988 for four year terms will be up for election, the representatives then
elected to serve for four year terms. In subsequent elections, this staggering of terms provides that the term of
service shall be four years, that the election of the representatives shall be staggered, and that three of the six
total representatives (and one of each district’s two representatives) will be elected at alternate elections every two
years.

F. For all elections beginning with 1990, the persons receiving the highest number of votes in each district will
serve as that district’s representative, and the person receiving the second highest number of votes as that
district’s alternate, both serving in such respective capacities for four year terms. An alternate will serve only in the
absence of the principal and shall have full voting rights when serving in such capacity. (Ord. 6011-NS § 8, 1990)

3.78.090 Bylaws of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission. 

The commission shall prepare and maintain bylaws for the community action agency. These bylaws and 
amendments thereto shall be consistent with City, state and federal policies governing community action 
agencies. A copy of the commission’s bylaws and all amendments thereto shall be distributed to the Berkeley City 
Clerk for public record purposes and shall be made available for public inspection. (Ord. 6011-NS § 9, 1990) 

Ch. 3.78 Human Welfare and Community Action Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 5 of 6

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT B



The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023. 

Disclaimer: The City Clerk’s Office has the official version of the Berkeley Municipal Code. Users should contact the 
City Clerk’s Office for ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. 

City Website: www.berkeleyca.gov 

Hosted by Code Publishing Company, A General Code Company. 

Ch. 3.78 Human Welfare and Community Action Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 6 of 6

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT B

https://www.berkeleyca.gov/
https://www.codebook.com/


3.68.010 
3.68.020 
3.68.030 
3.68.040 
3.68.050 
3.68.060 
3.68.070 

Chapter 3.68 
PEACE AND JUSTICE COMMISSION 

Sections: 

Findings. 
Established--Membership--Appointment. 
"Peace and justice" defined. 
Automatic termination of appointment. 
Liaison representative to other City entities. 
Organization, meetings, rules, and procedures. 
Functions. 

3.68.010 Findings. 

The council finds as follows: 

A. The intentional destruction of cities in war is the rule and not the exception.

B. State, national and international governmental bodies have failed to control war and in fact, have in many
cases, been responsible for war and the conditions of war.

C. The wealth that could be spent to help the poor, heal the sick, house the homeless, educate the children, and
care for the elderly is now spent on ever more costly weapons of mass destruction.

D. Peace is not a fictitious tranquil end-state, but the process of solving differences constructively, creatively, and
non-violently.

E. Peace is inseparable from justice.

F. The present threat of nuclear or biological holocaust is not peace, but a condition of war against all humanity.

G. Initiatives are needed to reverse the drift toward war and to remove the causes of war.

H. Our best protection lies in initiating, devising, and promulgating peaceful and just policy alternatives.

I. Individual citizens, unless organized, are virtually powerless in confronting and influencing larger
governmental bodies.

J. It is the responsibility of one and all to labor hard for peace and justice within forums of appropriate scale.

K. The residents of Berkeley have continually demonstrated their concern for peace and justice based on
equality among all peoples.

Ch. 3.68 Peace and Justice Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 1 of 5

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT C



L. The residents of Berkeley have welcomed to our City those who have been forced into exile, and who have
come fleeing torture and death.

M. The Berkeley City Council, to act successfully in furthering peace and justice, must have wise counsel, accurate
research, vigorous analysis, articulate formulation of issues and proposals for action, and thus the establishment
of a Peace and Justice Commission is proper. (Ord. 5705-NS § 1, 1986)

3.68.020 Established--Membership--Appointment. 

A Peace and Justice Commission is hereby established. The commission shall consist of fifteen members. Six 
members shall be appointed by the Berkeley Unified School District Board and nine members shall be appointed 
by the Berkeley City Council. Commission members shall have a demonstrated interest in the area of peace and 
social justice. It is suggested that the commission should have some representation of political refugees and 
political exiles who are residents of Berkeley and otherwise eligible to serve on the commission. Berkeley City 
Council appointments to the commission shall be made, and vacancies shall be filled in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 2.04.030 through 2.04.130 of the Berkeley Municipal Code enacted as Ordinance No. 
4780-N.S. by the voters of the City. (Ord. 5705-NS § 2, 1986) 

3.68.030 "Peace and justice" defined. 

For the purpose of this chapter, "peace and social justice" shall refer to the goal of creating a world community in 
which the relations between people are based on equality, respect for human rights, and the abhorrence of 
exploitation and all forms of oppression. (Ord. 5705-NS § 3, 1986) 

3.68.040 Automatic termination of appointment. 

A. The appointment of any member of the commission who has been absent from three consecutive meetings
shall automatically terminate as set forth in Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.02 unless: (i) the absence of the
commissioner is due to incarceration for acts of conscience or is due to absence from the City for work related to
that of the commission, (ii) in the case of absences for reasons stated in item (i) it is strongly urged that in
accordance with Section 3.02.030 of the Berkeley Municipal Code the appointing councilmember grant a leave of
absence for not more than three months, and fill the vacancy with a temporary appointment to the commission.

B. The chairperson of the commission shall report the attendance records of each member of the commission
to the City Clerk monthly for each regularly scheduled meeting.

C. Any member absent as noted in items A (i) and A (ii) above shall be recorded as "excused". Any member
absent without being recorded as excused from three consecutive regular meetings as reported monthly shall be
terminated automatically after the third missed meeting.

Ch. 3.68 Peace and Justice Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 2 of 5

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT C

https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/2.04.030
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/2.04.130
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/3.02
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/3.02.030


D. The City Clerk shall notify any member whose appointment has automatically terminated and report to the
appointing City Councilmember or School Board that a vacancy exists on the commission and that an appointment
should be made for the unexpired term. (Ord. 5705-NS § 4, 1986)

3.68.050 Liaison representative to other City entities. 

The commission may designate one or more of its members to act as a liaison representative to any other board, 
commission, or committee of the City. The functions of the liaison representative may include: 

A. Attendance at meetings of such other boards, commissions or committees;

B. Advising the Peace and Justice Commission on the background behind those recommendations to the City
Council of other boards, commissions or committees; and,

C. On request of any member of such other board, commission or committee giving advice to such other board,
commission or committee of policies, and procedures and recommendations to the City Council of the Peace and
Justice Commission that may bear upon matters under discussion by such other board, commission or committee.
(Ord. 5705-NS § 5, 1986)

3.68.060 Organization, meetings, rules, and procedures. 

A. The commission shall organize by electing from its members one chairperson and one vice-chairperson and
such other officers as may be necessary, who shall hold office for one year and until their successors are elected
unless their terms as members of the commission expire sooner. An officer or employee of the City designated by
the City Manager shall serve as secretary to the commission.

B. The commission shall establish a regular place and time for meeting. All meetings shall be noticed as required
by law and shall be scheduled in a way to allow for maximum input from the public. The frequency of meetings
shall be as determined by City Council resolution. The scheduling of special meetings in addition to those
established by City Council resolution, except special meetings that take the place of cancelled regular meetings,
shall be subject to approval by the City Council. A request for a special meeting shall include the reason for the
proposed meeting and should be expedited on the City Council’ s agenda, or in the alternative, placed before the
Agenda Committee for approval.

C. The commission shall establish internal working rules and procedures which do not violate those rules of
governance existing in the City Charter, the Commissioner’s Handbook, or established through the authority of the
City Council. (Ord. 6899-NS § 1, 2006: Ord. 5705-NS § 6, 1986)

Ch. 3.68 Peace and Justice Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 3 of 5

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT C



3.68.070 Functions. 

The commission shall perform the following functions: 

A. Advise the Berkeley City Council and the Berkeley Unified School Board on all matters relating to the City of
Berkeley’s role in issues of peace and social justice, including, but not limited to the issues of ending the arms race,
abolishing nuclear weapons, support for human rights and self-determination throughout the world, and the
reallocation of our national resources so that money now spent on war and preparation of war is spent on
fulfilling human needs and the promotion of peace.

B. Help create citizen awareness around issues of social justice and develop educational programs for
implementation by the City Council and the School Board.

C. Help develop proposals for the City Council and the School Board for actions in furtherance of the goals of
peace and justice, and help publicize such actions in the community.

D. Hold public hearings and community forums on issues that fall within the charge of the commission, and call
on appropriate witnesses to provide pertinent information.

E. Initiate and encourage research programs to collect and assess information relevant to the functions of the
commission including the effect of the arms race and military spending on funding for City and school programs
and on the quality of life for citizens of Berkeley.

F. Develop ways to resolve conflict which do not involve violence and which may be applied on a local level as
well as a national level.

G. Initiate and develop cultural and educational foreign exchange.

H. Act as a liaison between community groups organizing around issues of peace and social justice and City
government.

I. Prepare inventories of City resources, both public and private that are available for furthering the work of
promoting international peace and social justice.

J. Provide information to other municipalities and school districts on the work of the commission, and exchange
information on actions taken by cities and the School Board in furtherance of the goals of the commission.

K. Assist the Director of Finance in the annual evaluation of financial institutions for qualification of City
investments; complete development and assist in the implementation of a linked deposit program; encourage
target investments; coordinate with City agencies, appropriate community organizations, public and private
investors, and the Governor’s Public Investment Task Force; and advise the City Council on matters relating to the
responsible investment of public funds in accordance with the responsible investment policy established by
Resolution No. 55,141A-NS.

Ch. 3.68 Peace and Justice Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 4 of 5

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT C



The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023. 

Disclaimer: The City Clerk’s Office has the official version of the Berkeley Municipal Code. Users should contact the 
City Clerk’s Office for ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. 

City Website: www.berkeleyca.gov 

Hosted by Code Publishing Company, A General Code Company. 

L. Perform such other functions and duties as may be directed by the City Council or prescribed or authorized
by any ordinance of the City, and such other functions and duties not prohibited by City Council which the
commission should decide are consistent with its overall function of promoting peace and social justice.

M. In prescribing the above duties and functions of the commission, it is not the intent of the council to duplicate
or overlap the functions, duties, or responsibilities heretofore or hereafter assigned to any other City board or
commission or to a City department. As to such functions or responsibilities above set forth which are partially or
wholly the responsibilities of another board or commission or of a department of the City, the commission will
render such assistance and advice to such board, commission or department as may be requested. (Ord. 6017-NS
§ 1, 1990: Ord. 5705-NS § 7, 1986)

Ch. 3.68 Peace and Justice Commission | Berkeley Municipal Code Page 5 of 5

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7882-NS, passed July 25, 2023.

ATTACHMENT C

https://www.berkeleyca.gov/
https://www.codebook.com/


Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 1 

P R O C L AM AT I O N  
C AL L I N G A S PE C I AL  M E E TI NG  O F T HE

B E R K E LE Y C I T Y  C O U N CI L  
In accordance with the authority in me vested, I do hereby call the Berkeley City Council in special 

session as follows: 

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 
4:00 PM 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 
Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – TERRY TAPLIN  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting 
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be 
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety 
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting 
location available.   

Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on 
Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx. 

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  Please use this URL 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87908681987.  If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the 
drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise 
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.  

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 879 0868 1987. If 
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the 
Chair.  

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules 
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email 
council@cityofberkeley.info. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark 
Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the 
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time 
to be specified. 

1

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87908681987
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info


 

 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 2 

 
Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  
 

Action Calendar 
 The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items 

moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on 
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is 
taken up during the Action Calendar. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak use the "raise hand" function to determine 
the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two 
minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the 
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. The Presiding Officer may, with the consent of 
persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 
 

Action Calendar – Old Business 
 

1.  Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery 
From: Councilmember Droste (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor), Mayor Arreguin (Co-
Sponsor) (Reviewed by the Agenda & Rules Committee) (Continued from May 25, 
2021) 
Recommendation:  
1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the enabling 
legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a phased 
approach. Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless 
Services Panel of Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond 
Oversight Committee first, and request that the City Manager bring back changes to 
the enabling legislation to implement these consolidated commissions. Phase 2: All 
other Commissions as proposed in the report. As staff is able to make 
recommendations on consolidation, they can bring those recommendations forward 
one by one. 
2. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated 
commissions and the effective date of the changes.  
3. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment 
Commission and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy areas of 
the merged commissions.  
4. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be composed of only 
Mayor and Council appointees.  
5. Refer to City Manager and Commissions the following additional considerations: 
- Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 
how to handle. - Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by 
City Council, through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, 
and by what means they might be merged/adjusted. - What elements of each 
Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant topics/issues not currently 
covered that might be added to a more comprehensive and/or relevant merged 
Commission’s charter. - Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a 
greater number of members. - The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for 

2



Action Calendar – Old Business 
 

 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 3 

appointment to the merged Commission. - The possibility of recommended or 
required Standing Committees of the Merged Commission. - Volunteer workload and 
capacity given scope of Commission’s charter 
Policy Committee Recommendation: Make a Qualified Positive Recommendation to 
City Council to: 1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes 
to the enabling legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in 
a phased approach. Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless 
Commission/Homeless Services Panel of Experts and Housing Advisory 
Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight Committee first, and request that the City 
Manager bring back changes to the enabling legislation to implement these 
consolidated commissions. Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed in the 
report. As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, they can bring 
those recommendations forward one by one. 2. Refer to the Commissions impacted 
a process to determine the charge/responsibilities of the newly merged commissions, 
and bring Commission input to the appropriate Policy Committees (as proposed by 
Vice-Mayor Droste in 4/5/21 submittal) for further recommendations to the City 
Manager on revised charge/responsibilities of merged commissions. 3. Refer to staff 
to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated commissions and 
the effective date of the changes. 4. Consider establishing 18 members on the new 
Climate and Environment Commission and establishing specific subcommittees 
focused on the policy areas of the merged commissions.5. The Peace, Justice and 
Human Welfare Commission will be comprised of only Mayor and Council 
appointees. 6. Refer Councilmember Hahn questions to City Manager and 
Commissions: “Commissions to Combine/Merge - Suggested Considerations” 
 - Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 
how to handle. - Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by 
City Council, through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, 
and by what means they might be merged/adjusted. - What elements of each 
Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant topics/issues not currently 
covered that might be added to a more comprehensive and/or relevant merged 
Commission’s charter. - Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a 
greater number of members. - The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for 
appointment to the merged Commission. - The possibility of recommended or 
required Standing Committees of the Merged Commission - Volunteer workload and 
capacity given scope of Commission’s charter. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, (510) 981-7180 

 

Public Comment - Items on this agenda only 

Adjournment 
I hereby request that the City Clerk of the City of Berkeley cause personal notice to be given to each 
member of the Berkeley City Council on the time and place of said meeting, forthwith. 
 

3



 

 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 4 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
    and caused the official seal of the City of Berkeley to be 
    affixed on this 3rd day of June, 2021. 

     
    Jesse Arreguin, Mayor 

Public Notice – this Proclamation serves as the official agenda for this meeting. 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Date:  June 3, 2021 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of 
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be 
barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use 
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally 
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx 

and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City 
Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be posted on the City's website at http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 
 

 
Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. 
 

4

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


 

 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 5 

Communications 
Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and 
Commissions for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to Council are 
public record. Copies of individual communications are available for viewing through Records Online. 

Item #1: Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery 
1. Holly Scheider 
 

5

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline/


6



1

Lori Droste
Berkeley Vice Mayor
 

ACTION CALENDAR
June 15, 2021

(Continued from May 25, 2021)
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
 
From: Councilmember Lori Droste (Author), Councilmembers Rigel Robinson 

(Co-Sponsor), Rashi Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor) and Mayor Jesse Arreguín 
(Co-Sponsor)

 
Subject: Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery
 
RECOMMENDATION
1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the
enabling legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a
phased approach.

Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless Services Panel
of Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight
Committee first, and request that the City Manager bring back changes to the
enabling legislation to implement these consolidated commissions.

Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed below.
As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, they can bring those
recommendations forward one by one.

New Commission Name Former Commissions to be Reorganized

Commission on Climate and the 
Environment

Zero Waste, Energy, Community Environmental Advisory, and 
Animal Care

Page 1 of 13

7

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
01

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
Special Meeting Item



2

Parks, Recreation, Waterfront (special 
Marina subcommittee)

Children, Youth, and Recreation and Parks and Waterfront

Peace, Justice, and Human Welfare1 Peace and Justice and Human Welfare, Community Action 
Commissions

Public Health Commission & Sugar 
Sweetened Beverage Panel of Experts 

Community Health Commission and Sugar Sweetened Beverage 
Panel of Experts

Housing Advisory Commission Measure O and Housing Advisory Commission

Homeless Services Panel of Experts Homeless Commission and Measure P Homeless Services Panel 
of Experts

Public Works and Transportation Public Works and Transportation

Planning Planning and Cannabis

All other commissions will maintain their current structure: Aging, Library Board of Trustees, Civic Arts, 
Disability, Commission on the Status of Women, Design Review Committee, Disaster and Fire Safety, BIDs, Fair 
Campaign Practices and Open Government, Redistricting, Landmarks Preservation, Labor, Loan Adjustments 
Board, Personnel, Planning, Police Review/Accountability, Reimagining Public Safety, Mental Health, Zoning 
Adjustments Board, and Youth

2. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated 
commissions and the effective date of the changes. 

3. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment Commission 
and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy areas of the merged 
commissions. 

4. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be composed of only Mayor 
and Council appointees. 

5. Refer to City Manager and Commissions the following additional considerations:
- Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 

how to handle.  
- Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by City Council, 

through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, and by what 
means they might be merged/adjusted 

1 Members will be appointed by Council and membership should adhere to Government Code Section 12736(e); 12750(a)(2) and 
12751.

Page 2 of 13

8



3

- What elements of each Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant 
topics/issues not currently covered that might be added to a more 
comprehensive and/or relevant merged Commission’s charter.  

- Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a greater number of 
members.  

- The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for appointment to the merged 
Commission.  

- The possibility of recommended or required Standing Committees of the Merged 
Commission  

- Volunteer workload and capacity given scope of Commission’s charter

Policy Committee Oversight2 Commissions

Agenda and Rules 1. Fair Campaign Practices/Open Government 
Commission

2. Personnel Board 

Budget and Finance (Any legislation that requires funding)

Public Safety 1. Disaster and Fire Safety Commission
2. Police Accountability Board/Police Review 

Commission
3. Reimagining Public Safety Task Force 

Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation 
and the Environment

1. Commission on the Environment
2. Parks, Recreation and Waterfront with Marina 

subcommittee
3. Public Works and Transportation 

Land Use and Economic Development 1. Measure O Housing Commission
2. Planning Commission
3. Labor
4. Civic Arts Commission 

Health, Equity, Life Enrichment, and 
Community

1. Peace, Justice, and Civil Rights 
2. Health and Sugar Sweetened Beverage Panel of 

Experts 
3. Homeless Services Panel of Experts 
4. Mental Health Commission (state/federal mandate)
5. Commission on the Status of Women
6. Disability Commission

2 Primary policy committee oversight but legislation may be referred to multiple policy committees.

Page 3 of 13

9



4

Other Commissions:  Zoning Adjustments Board (DRC), Landmarks Preservation, Board of Library Trustees, 
BIDs, Independent Redistricting Commission, Loan Administration Board

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
On April 5, 2021, the Agenda and Rules Committee made a qualified positive 
recommendation to City Council to:
1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the enabling 
legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a phased 
approach. 

Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless Services Panel of 
Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight Committee first, 
and request that the City Manager bring back changes to the enabling legislation to 
implement these consolidated commissions. 

Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed below. 
As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, they can bring those 
recommendations forward one by one. 

New Commission Name 
(suggested)

Former Commissions to be Reorganized

Commission on Climate and the 
Environment 

Zero Waste, Energy, Community Environmental 
Advisory, and Animal Care

Parks, Recreation, Waterfront 
(special Marina subcommittee)

Children, Youth, and Recreation and Parks and 
Waterfront

Peace, Justice, and Human Welfare Peace and Justice Commission and Human Welfare 
and Community Action Commission 

Public Health Commission & Sugar 
Sweetened Beverage Panel of 
Experts 

Community Health Commission and Sugar Sweetened 
Beverage Panel of Experts

Housing Advisory Commission Measure O and Housing Advisory Commission

Homeless Services Panel of 
Experts

Homeless Commission and Measure P Homeless 
Services Panel of Experts

Page 4 of 13

10



5

Public Works and Transportation Public Works and Transportation

Planning Planning and Cannabis

All other commissions will maintain their current structure:  Aging, Library Board of 
Trustees, Civic Arts, Disability, Commission on the Status of Women, Design Review 
Committee, Disaster and Fire Safety, BIDs, Fair Campaign Practices and Open Government, 
Redistricting, Landmarks Preservation, Labor, Loan Adjustments Board, Personnel, Planning, 
Police Review/Accountability, Reimagining Public Safety, Mental Health, Zoning Adjustments 
Board, and Youth

2. Refer to the Commissions impacted a process to determine the 
charge/responsibilities of the newly merged commissions, and bring Commission input 
to the appropriate Policy Committees (as proposed by Vice-Mayor Droste in 4/5/21 
submittal) for further recommendations to the City Manager on revised 
charge/responsibilities of merged commissions. 

3. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated 
commissions and the effective date of the changes. 

4. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment Commission 
and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy areas of the merged 
commissions.

5. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be comprised of only Mayor 
and Council appointees. 

6. Refer Councilmember Hahn questions to City Manager and Commissions: 
“Commissions to Combine/Merge - Suggested Considerations”

 Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 
how to handle

 Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by City Council, 
through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, and by what 
means they might be merged/adjusted

 What elements of each Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant 
topics/issues not currently covered that might be added to a more comprehensive 
and/or relevant merged Commission’s charter.

 Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a greater number of 
members.

 The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for appointment to the merged 
Commission.

 The possibility of recommended or required Standing Committees of the Merged 
Commission

 Volunteer workload and capacity given scope of Commission’s charter

Page 5 of 13

11



6

PROBLEM/SUMMARY STATEMENT
Commissions provide an important mechanism for residents to shape public policy and 
provide input on City business. However, the City of Berkeley maintains far more 
commissions than other cities of similar size, with a significant investment of City 
resources to staff all 37 commissions. Some commission secretaries report spending 
upwards of 20+ hours per week on commission business, which takes valuable time 
away from addressing other pressing City priorities. The local public health emergency 
created by the global COVID-19 pandemic has required City staff to shift to new roles 
and maintain an Emergency Operations Center since January 2020; recovery from the 
pandemic will continue to demand the full attention of our City staff for the foreseeable 
future. Given the uncertainties that our City faces in recovering from the COVID-19 
pandemic and the demands that this recovery places on our City staff, it is an 
appropriate time to consider how best to consolidate our commissions in a manner that 
helps the City to achieve its core mission.   

REITERATION OF PRINCIPLES
Commissions are a fundamental part of the City’s policymaking process. Members of 
boards and commissions provide an invaluable service to our City. They advise the City 
Council on a wide variety of subjects by making recommendations on important policy 
matters. Without the assistance of the various boards and commissions, the City 
Council could give many complex and significant matters only a perfunctory review. The 
detailed studies and considered advice of boards and commissions are often catalysts 
for innovative programs and improved services. Serving on a board or commission can 
be a rewarding experience for community service– minded residents. It is an excellent 
way to participate in the functioning of local government and to make a personal 
contribution to the improvement of our community. Making local government effective 
and responsive is everybody’s responsibility. 

● The Public Works Commission, for example, develops the City’s five year paving 
plan which they then present to City Council for approval. Through extensive 
community outreach and research, the Commission identifies the streets most in 
need of repaving. 

● With the passage of Measure D in 2014, a Panel of Experts on Sugar-Sweetened 
Beverages has guided the City’s spending of over $5 million in revenue 
generated from the Measure. Those dollars have bolstered local public 
campaigns and education initiatives. 

Page 6 of 13

12



7

These are merely two examples of the powerful role that Commissions play in City 
policymaking.      
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Current Commission Structure
The City of Berkeley has approximately thirty-seven commissions overseen by city 
administration, most of which have at least nine members and who are appointed by 
individual councilmembers. These commissions were intended to be a forum for public 
participation beyond what is feasible at the City Council, so that issues that come before 
the City Council can be adequately vetted.
 
Some commissions are required by charter or mandated by voter approval or 
state/federal mandate. Those commissions are the following:

1. Board of Library Trustees (charter)
2. Business Improvement Districts (state mandate)
3. Civic Arts Commission (charter)
4. Community Environmental Advisory Commission (state/federal mandate--

CUPA)
5. Fair Campaign Practices Commission/Open Government (ballot measure)
6. Homeless Services Panel of Experts (ballot measure)
7. Housing Advisory Commission (state/federal mandate)
8. Human Welfare and Community Action (state/federal mandate)
9. Measure O Bond Oversight Committee (ballot measure)
10. Mental Health Commission (state/federal mandate)
11. Personnel (charter)Police Review Commission (ballot measure)
12. Sugar-Sweetened Beverages (ballot measure)

 
Berkeley must have its own mental health commission because of its independent 
Mental Health Division. In order to receive services, the City needs to have to have an 
advisory board. Additionally, Berkeley’s Community Environmental Advisory 
Commission is a required commission in order to oversee Certified Unified Program 
Agency (CUPA) under California’s Environmental Protection Agency. Additionally, some 
commissions serve other purposes beyond policy advisories. The Children, Youth and 
Recreation Commission, Housing Advisory Commission, and the Human Welfare and 
Community Action Commission advise Council on community agency funding. 
However, some of the aforementioned quasi-judicial and state/federal mandated 
commissions do not need to stand independently and can be combined to meet 
mandated goals.
 
The Importance of Commissions

Page 7 of 13

13



8

Commissions serve a vital role in the City of Berkeley’s rich process of resident 
engagement. An analysis of agendas over the past several years shows that the 
commissions have created policy that have benefited the community in meaningful and 
important ways. In 2020, 14 of the 16 commission items submitted to Council passed.  
From 2016-2020, an average of 34 items were submitted by commissions to Council for 
consideration.
 
The City’s Health, Housing and Community Development department serves an 
important role in addressing COVID-19, racial disparities, inequitable health outcomes, 
affordable housing, and other important community programs. Additionally, Health, 
Housing, and Community Development also staffs ten commissions, more than many 
cities of Berkeley’s size. Council needs to wrestle with these tradeoffs to ensure that we 
seek the maximum benefit for all of the Berkeley community, particularly our most 
vulnerable.
 
Commission Structures in Neighboring Jurisdictions
In comparison to neighboring jurisdictions of similar size, Berkeley has significantly 
more commissions. The median number of commissions for these cities is 12 and the 
average is 15.
 

 Comparable                  
Bay Area City

Population 
(est.)

Number of 
Commissions Links

 Berkeley 121,000 37
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-
_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf

 Antioch 112,000 6https://www.antiochca.gov/government/boards-commissions/

 Concord 130,000 14
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-
Commi

 Daly City 107,000 7
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Inf
ormation/boards.htm

 Fairfield 117,000 7https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/gov/comms/default.asp

 Fremont 238,000 15https://www.fremont.gov/76/Boards-Commissions-Committees

 Hayward 160,000 12https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions

Page 8 of 13

14

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf
https://www.antiochca.gov/government/boards-commissions/
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-Commi
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-Commi
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Information/boards.htm
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Information/boards.htm
https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/gov/comms/default.asp
https://www.fremont.gov/76/Boards-Commissions-Committees
https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions


9

 Richmond 110,000 29https://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/256/Boards-and-Commissions

 San Mateo 105,000 7https://www.cityofsanmateo.org/60/Commissions-Boards

 Sunnyvale 153,000 10https://sunnyvale.ca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=22804

 Vallejo 122,000 17http://www.ci.vallejo.ca.us/cms/one.aspx?pageId=22192

 
To understand the impact on various departments and staffing capacity, the following 
table shows which departments are responsible for overseeing various commissions.
 
Staffing and Resources Supporting Berkeley’s Current Commission Structure

Commission Name
Overseeing Department (Total Commissions in 

Department)

Animal Care Commission City Manager (8)

Civic Arts Commission City Manager (8)

Commission on the Status of Women City Manager (8)

Elmwood BID Advisory Board City Manager (8)

Loan Administration Board City Manager (8)

Peace and Justice Commission City Manager (8)

Solano Ave BID Advisory Board City Manager (8)

Cannabis Commission Planning (7)

Community Environmental Advisory Commission Planning (7)

Design Review Committee Planning (7)

Energy Commission Planning (7)

Landmarks Preservation Commission Planning (7)

Planning Commission Planning (7)

Zoning Adjustments Board Planning (7)

Page 9 of 13

15

https://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/256/Boards-and-Commissions
https://www.cityofsanmateo.org/60/Commissions-Boards
https://sunnyvale.ca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=22804
http://www.ci.vallejo.ca.us/cms/one.aspx?pageId=22192


10

Children, Youth, and Recreation Commission Parks (3)

Parks and Waterfront Commission Parks (3)

Youth Commission Parks (3)

Commission on Aging Health, Housing, and Community Services (HHCS) 
(10)

Commission on Labor HHCS (10)

Community Health Commission HHCS (10)

Homeless Commission HHCS (10)

Homeless Services Panel of Experts HHCS(10)

Housing Advisory Commission HHCS (10)

Human Welfare & Community Action Commission HHCS (10)

Measure O Bond Oversight Committee HHCS (10)

Mental Health Commission HHCS (10)

Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts HHCS (10)

Disaster and Fire Safety Commission Fire (1)

Commission on Disability Public Works (4)

Public Works Commission Public Works (4)

Transportation Commission Public Works (4)

Zero Waste Commission Public Works (4)

Fair Campaign Practices Commission/Open Government 
Commission

City Attorney (1)

Personnel Board Human Resources (1)

Page 10 of 13

16



11

Police Review Commission/Police Accountability Board Police Review Commission/Police Accountability 
Board Staff

Reimagining Public Safety Task Force City Manager *(8) and BPD (2)

Board of Library Trustees Library (1)

Gray=charter
Red=state/federal mandate
Yellow=quasi-judicial
Blue=ballot initiative
Orange=state/federal mandate and quasi-judicial
Green=quasi-judicial and ballot initiative

 
The departments that staff more than five commissions are Health, Housing, and 
Community Services (10 commissions), Planning (7 commissions), and the City 
Manager’s department (8 commissions). At the same time, some smaller departments 
(e.g. the City Attorney’s office) may be impacted just as meaningfully if they have fewer 
staff and larger individual commission workloads.
 
Policy Committee Structure Expands Opportunities for Public Input
With the recent addition of policy committees, proposed legislation is now vetted by 
councilmembers in these forums. Each policy committee is focused on a particular 
content area aligned with the City of Berkeley’s strategic plan and is staffed and an 
advisory policy body to certain city departments.  Members of the public are able to 
provide input at these committees as well.  The policy committees currently have the 
following department alignment:
 
Department and Policy Committee alignment

1. Agenda and Rules–all departments
2. Budget and Finance–City Manager, Clerk, Budget, and Finance
3. Land Use and Economic Development–Clerk, Planning, HHCS, City 

Attorney, and City Manager (OED)
4. Public Safety–Clerk, City Manager, Police, and Fire
5. Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment and 

Sustainability (Clerk, City Manager, Planning, Public Works, and Parks)
6. Health, Equity, Life Enrichment, and Community (Clerk, City Manager, 

HHCS)
 
Staffing Costs
Based upon preliminary calculations of staff titles and salary classifications, the average 
commission staff secretary makes roughly $60-$65/hour. Based upon recent interviews 
with secretaries and department heads, individual commission secretaries work 

Page 11 of 13

17



12

anywhere from 8-80 hours a month staffing and preparing for commission meetings. To 
illustrate this example, a few examples are listed below.
 

Commission Step 5 Rate 
of Pay

Reported 
Hours a Month

Total Direct Cost of 
Commission per Month

Animal Care $70.90 8 $567.20

Landmarks Preservation 
Commission

$57.96 80 $4,636.80
 

Design Review Commission $52.76 60 $3,165.60
 

Peace and Justice $60.82 32 $1,946.24

 
It is extremely challenging to estimate a specific cost of commissions in the aggregate 
because of the varying workload but a safe estimate of salary costs dedicated to 
commissions would be in the six-figure range.
 
Many commissions--particularly quasi-judicial and land use commissions– require more 
than one staff member to be present and prepare reports for commissions. For 
example, Zoning Adjustment Board meetings often last five hours or more and multiple 
staff members spend hours preparing for hearings. The Planning Department indicates 
that in addition to direct hours, additional commission-related staff time adds an extra 
33% staff time.  Using the previous examples, this means that the Landmarks 
Preservation Commission would cost the city over $6,000 in productivity while the 
Design Review Commission would cost the City over $4,000 a month. 
 
Productivity Losses and Administrative Burden
Current productivity losses are stark because of the sheer amount of hours of staffing 
time dedicated to commissions. As an example, in 2019 one of the City of Berkeley’s 
main homeless outreach workers staffed a commission within the City Manager’s 
department. She spent approximately 32 hours a month working directly on commission 
work. While this is not a commentary on a particular commission, this work directly 
impacted her ability to conduct homeless outreach. 
 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Page 12 of 13

18



13

At a time when the City needs to demonstrate efficiency and fiscal restraint, the current 
commission structure is costly and duplicative. At the same time, civic engagement and 
commission work absolutely deserve an important role in Berkeley. Consequently, this 
legislation retains commissions but centers on overall community benefit, staff 
productivity, and associated costs. This is imperative to address, especially in light of 
COVID-19 and community demands for reinvestment in important social services.

FISCAL IMPACTS 
Significant savings associated with reduced staffing.

CONTACT
Vice Mayor Lori Droste 510-981-7180

Page 13 of 13

19



20



 
 

Communications 
 
 
 
 
 

All communications submitted to the City Council are 
public record.  Communications are not published directly 
to the City’s website.  Copies of individual communications 
are available for viewing at the City Clerk Department and 
through Records Online. 
 
City Clerk Department 
2180 Milvia Street 
Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6900 
 
Records Online 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline 
 
To search for communications associated with a particular City Council 
meeting using Records Online: 



1. Select Search Type = “Public – Communication Query (Keywords)” 
2. From Date: Enter the date of the Council meeting 
3. To Date: Enter the date of the Council meeting (this may match the 

From Date field) 
4. Click the “Search” button 
5. Communication packets matching the entered criteria will be 

returned 
6. Click the desired file in the Results column to view the document as 

a PDF 
 



   

 
Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov  Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/ 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
January 30, 2024 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 

Submitted by:  Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing, and Community Services 

Subject: Dissolution of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission and 
the Peace and Justice Commission; and, establishment of the Berkeley 
Community Action Agency Commission  

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt first reading of an Ordinance to: 

1. Repeal Chapter 3.68, Peace and Justice Commission; and, 
2. Repeal Chapter 3.78, Human Welfare and Community Action Commission; and, 
3. Establish the Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission with Chapter 3.70  

 
FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
The City of Berkeley receives approximately $300,000 of CSBG funding per calendar 
year to support programs and services that combat poverty for Berkeley residents. 
Currently, the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission (HWCAC) acts as 
the federally mandated tripartite board for CSBG funding and advises the Council on 
how to use these funds. The duties associated with CSBG funding will be transferred to 
the newly-established Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission (BCAA), which 
will take on the advisory responsibilities previously held by the HWCAC. The City 
Council will continue to be the decision-making body and will be responsible for all final 
CSBG funding decisions. 

The dissolution of two commissions and establishment of one commission may reduce 
staffing and operating costs associated with running commission meetings, because the 
total number of commissions will be decreased by one. This staff cost saving was 
identified in the June 15, 2021 Council item, “Commission Reorganization for Post-
COVID19 Budget Recovery” (Attachment 2).  

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
In order to sustain civic engagement and remain fiscally responsible, in June 2021 the 
City Council directed the City Manager to consolidate several City commissions, 
including the HWCAC and Peace and Justice Commission (PJC). Additionally, as of this 
writing, the HWCAC has two commissioners and has not achieved a commission 
meeting quorum since June 21, 2023. This is a significant problem for both the City 

mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
https://berkeleyca.gov/


   
Dissolution of the HWCAC and PJC; and establishment of the BCAA CONSENT CALENDAR 
 January 30, 2024 

Page 2 

commission meeting requirements as well as CSBG funding requirements, for which the 
HWCAC serves as an advisory board to Council. Without regular meetings of the 
HWCAC, the City is in violation of the contract requirements for CSBG funding, which 
include approval of CSBG revenue contracts, regular review of community agency 
performance reports, public hearings on community needs, and funding 
recommendations to City Council. With over half of the seats currently vacant, the PJC 
has also struggled to maintain its membership. 
 
The proposed Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission (BCAA) would adopt all 
CSBG-related requirements, ensuring contract compliance and preservation of the 
approximate $300,000 per calendar year that the City receives in CSBG funding for 
anti-poverty programs and services for Berkeley residents.  
 
The proposed change from 15 members of the HWCAC to a nine-member structure for 
the BCAA would achieve a balance between the strict federal funding requirement to 
have a tripartite board, and the ability to keep the seats on the commission filled. The 
three parts of the tripartite board are one-third elected public officials (or their 
designees), at least one- third elected low-income individuals residing in the CSBG 
agency's designated service area (in this case, the City of Berkeley), and the remaining 
members from the private sector (such as representatives from business, industry, 
labor, religious, human services, education, or other groups with interest in the 
community). City staff received technical assistance from the California Community 
Action Partnership Association (CalCAPA), which supports Community Action Agencies 
and CSBG funding recipients with HUD compliance, to ensure that the new commission 
structure will be CSBG compliant. 
 
The new BCAA municipal code chapter will include the key responsibilities and 
requirements from both the HWCAC and PJC. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On June 15, 2021, City Council directed the City Manager to examine a multi-phased 
approach to the consolidation of City commissions, including a merger of the HWCAC 
and the PJC. The merging of these two commissions was delayed due to conflicting 
municipal code requirements, as well as challenges to ensuring CSBG funding 
compliance. City staff have now determined that the commissions are able to be 
merged without disrupting the responsibilities of each respective commission. City staff 
shared a memo with both commissions that included a description and timeline for the 
merger, as well as staff contact information for any questions, concerns, or feedback. 
 
The HWCAC was established to identify social welfare needs of the community and to 
advise City Council on the use of CSBG funds for services that benefit low-income 
Berkeley residents, acting as a tripartite board for the City of Berkeley’s CSBG funding.  
 



   
Dissolution of the HWCAC and PJC; and establishment of the BCAA CONSENT CALENDAR 
 January 30, 2024 

Page 3 

The PJC was established to advise City Council and the Berkeley Unified School Board 
on all matters relating to the City of Berkeley’s role in issues of peace and social justice, 
including, but not limited to the issues of ending the arms race, abolishing nuclear 
weapons, support for human rights and self-determination throughout the world, and the 
reallocation of our national resources so that money now spent on war and preparation 
of war is spent on fulfilling human needs and the promotion of peace. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS 
There are no environmental sustainability or climate impacts associated with this report. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The proposal to dissolve the HWCAC and PJC and establish the BCAA is consistent 
with Council’s directive to consolidate those two commissions. The new commission 
(BCAA) will be responsible for all CSBG-related requirements, which are currently not 
being met by the HWCAC due to ongoing commissioner vacancies and a lack of 
commission meeting quorum. The formation of the BCAA addresses these issues 
explicitly, by introducing new strategies and configurations for the tripartite board. In 
addition, the PJC has struggled to maintain its membership as well with over half of the 
seats currently vacant. Combining the two commissions will help maintain a more robust 
membership and public participation, and will support carrying out the assigned duties. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
Due to the ongoing commission vacancies in the HWCAC and PJC, as well as Council’s 
directive to consolidate the HWCAC and PJC, no alternative actions were considered. 

CONTACT PERSON 
Mary-Claire Katz, Associate Management Analyst, HHCS, 981-5414 
 
Attachments:  
1: Ordinance  
2. “Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery”, June 15, 2021 
 



   

 

ORDINANCE NO. -N.S. 
 
 

 
ADDING CHAPTER 7.26 TO THE BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE ESTABLISHING 

THE BERKELEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY COMMISSION AND REPEALING 
SECTIONS 3.68 AND 3.78  

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows: 
 
Section 1. That a new Chapter 3.70 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is added to read as 
follows: 
 

Chapter 3.70 
 

BERKELEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY COMMISSION 
 
Sections: 
3.70.010 Creation of the Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission 
3.70.020 Membership 
3.70.030Term of office  
3.70.040 Vacancy and removal  
3.70.050 Temporary vacancies 
3.70.060 Officers, meetings and procedures  
3.70.070 Social welfare defined  
3.70.080 Social justice defined 
3.70.090 Functions of the commission 
3.70.100 Elections for low-income representatives 
3.70.110 Bylaws of the Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission 
 
Chapter 3.70.010 Creation of the Berkeley Community Action Agency 
Commission 
The Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission is hereby created with an 
effective date of May 1, 2024. 
 
Section 3.70.020 Membership 

A. This commission is not subject to BMC Sections 2.04.030–2.04.130, the Fair 
Representation Ordinance, due to the Community Action Agency membership 
regulations in state and federal law. 

B. Three of the members shall be appointed by the Berkeley City Council by 
majority vote. 

C. Three of the members shall be low-income representatives, elected to the 
commission using one of the following methods:  

i. An individual who is at or below the federal poverty line, and who resides within 
the City of Berkeley; or 



   

Page 2 

ii. An individual from a group(s) or organization(s) composed primarily of low-
income persons and representing the interest of the low-income population in the City of 
Berkeley, whose membership duly select a representative chosen in accordance with a 
democratic selection procedure. 

D. Three of the members shall be members or officials of business, industry, labor, 
religious, welfare, education, or major groups and interests in the community, as 
required by California Government Code Sections 12736(e), 12750(a)(2), and 12751, 
the language of which is incorporated herein by reference. These members should be 
identified and nominated for Council approval by the existing commissioners. 

E. For the purpose of members appointed pursuant to paragraph C and D, the 
community service block grant (CSBG) target area is within the boundary of the City of 
Berkeley.  

 
Section 3.70.030 Term of office.  

No board member shall serve more than eight (8) years pursuant to Berkeley 
Municipal Code 3.02.040. 
 
Section 3.70.040 Vacancy and removal 

A. Vacancies on said commission shall be filled in accordance with the provisions 
outlined in Section 3.70.050 herein. Vacancies on the board shall result when a member 
notifies the City Clerk of their resignation, or when an elected board member moves and 
establishes residence outside of their election district.  

B. When the position of an appointed board member is vacant, the Council shall fill 
the vacancy. Vacancies in any elected commission position shall be filled by an 
appropriate elected alternate; when no alternate is available, the vacancy shall be filled 
by the remaining elected commission members, who shall recommend to the council 
the person to fill out the term of the appointment.  

C. An elected member of the commission shall also be removed when they are 
absent from three consecutive regular meetings of the commission. After a member has 
been absent from two consecutive regular meetings, the secretary advises the member 
that absence from three consecutive meetings of the commission will result in automatic 
termination. There is no provision for excused absences. Within one week of the third 
consecutive absence the commission secretary notifies the City Clerk of the three 
absences. The appointment expires on the date the fact of the third absence is reported 
to the City Clerk. Within one week the City Clerk notifies the commission member that 
their term has expired and the councilmember or council, as appropriate, that a vacancy 
exists on the board and that an appointment should be made to fill such vacancy.  
 
Section 3.70.050 Temporary vacancies 

A member of the commission may take a temporary leave of absence of up to three 
months in duration, during which time a temporary vacancy shall exist. During the 
period of such temporary vacancy in an elected position, the elected alternate shall 
serve in the place of the regular representative. If there is no alternate for the 
commission member, a temporary appointment shall be made by the remaining low-
income representatives. During the period of such temporary vacancy in an appointed 
position, the City Council may make a temporary appointment leave of absence, the 



   

Page 3 

member shall automatically resume full membership on the board to the end of their 
term.  
 
Section 3.70.060 Officers, meetings and procedures 

A. The commission shall elect one of its members chairperson and one of its 
members vice-chairperson, who shall hold office for one year or unless their terms as 
members of the commission shall expire sooner and until their successors are elected. 
The chairperson and vice-chairperson shall be elected during the first quarter of each 
calendar year. An alternate may not serve as an officer of the board.  

B. The commission shall establish a regular place and time for meeting. All 
meetings shall be noticed as required by law and shall be scheduled in a way to allow 
for maximum input from the public. The frequency of meetings shall be as determined 
by City Council resolution. The scheduling of special meetings in addition to those 
established by City Council resolution, except special meetings that take the place of 
cancelled regular meetings, shall be subject to approval by the City Council. A request 
for a special meeting shall include the reason for the proposed meeting and should be 
expedited on the City Council’ s agenda, or in the alternative, placed before the Agenda 
Committee for approval.  

C. A quorum shall be a majority of members of the non-vacant seats on the 
commission. The commission shall keep an accurate record of its proceedings and 
transactions and shall submit an annual report to the City Council, with a copy to the 
City Manager.  

D. All committees and subcommittees of this commission shall fairly reflect the 
composition of the commission.  
 
Section 3.70.070 Social welfare defined 

"Social Welfare" as used in this chapter, means that endeavor which is concerned 
with community-wide and group interests rather than with needs of individual residents 
and embraces such areas, among others, special needs of the family, children, youth 
and the aged, and the way in which people live and work together.  
 
Section 3.70.080 Social justice defined 

“Social justice" shall refer to the goal of creating a world community in which the 
relations between people are based on equality, respect for human rights, and the 
abhorrence of exploitation and all forms of oppression.  
 
Section 3.70.090 Functions of the commission 

The functions of the commission shall be as follows:  
A. The commission shall function as the Board of the Community Action Agency as 

set forth in California Government Code Sections 12750 - 12763, the terms of which are 
incorporated herein by reference;  

B. Identify social welfare needs of the Berkeley community and create awareness of 
these needs among residents;  

C. Review and accept the Community Needs Assessment as outlined in the 
Community Service Block Grant Organizational Standards and create a citizen 
awareness of these needs; 



   

Page 4 

D. Encourage the development of programs designed to improve the social welfare 
of the Berkeley community;  

E. Advise the Berkeley City Council on all matters relating to the City of Berkeley’s 
role in issues of peace and social justice, including, but not limited to the issues of 
ending the arms race, abolishing nuclear weapons, support for human rights and self-
determination throughout the world; 

F. Create citizen awareness around issues of social justice; 
G. Advise the City Council on matters relating to the responsible investment of 

public funds in accordance with the responsible investment policy established by 
Resolution No. 55,141A-NS.  

H. Act in an advisory role to City Council on Socially Responsible Investment for the 
City of Berkeley as prescribed in B.M.C. Section 3.68.070.K, including socially 
responsible procurement policy, Nuclear Free Berkeley Act Waivers, and Oppressive 
States Contracting Prohibition (per Resolution 59,853-N.S.); 

I. Perform such other functions and duties as may be directed by the City Council 
or as may be directed by the City Council or prescribed or authorized by any ordinance 
of the City;  

J. In prescribing the above duties and functions of the commission, it is not the 
intent of the council to duplicate or overlap the functions, duties or responsibilities 
heretofore or hereafter assigned to any other City board or commission or to a City 
board or commission or to a City department. As to such functions or responsibilities 
above set forth which are partially or wholly the responsibilities of another board or 
commission or of a department of the City, the commission will render assistance and 
advice to such board, commission or department as may be requested. 
 
Section 3.70.100 Elections for low-income representatives 

Low-income representatives shall be chosen in accordance with democratic 
selection procedures adequate to assure that they represent the low-income persons in 
the geographic service area of the City of Berkeley. Among the selection procedures 
which may be employed, either separately or in combination, are the following: (a) 
nominations and elections, whether within the neighborhoods, community, or service 
area as a whole; (b) selection at a meeting or conference of low-income persons such 
that the date, time, and place of such a meeting or conference have been adequately 
publicized; (c) selection of a small area basis (such as a neighborhood) of 
representatives who in turn select members for the commission; (d) the commission 
may recognize a group(s) or organization(s) composed primarily of low-income persons 
and representing the interest of the low-income population, whose membership may 
select one or more representatives to the commission. Persons at or below the federal 
poverty line shall be permitted to vote in the selection processes. The commission may 
request a waiver for the federal poverty line eligibility in order to establish residency or 
other relevant criteria as a basis for eligibility. 
 
Section 3.70.110 Bylaws of the Human Welfare and Community Action 
Commission 

The commission shall prepare and maintain bylaws for the community action 
agency. These bylaws and amendments thereto shall be consistent with City, state and 



   

Page 5 

federal policies governing community action agencies. A copy of the commission’s 
bylaws and all amendments thereto shall be distributed to the Berkeley City Clerk for 
public record purposes and shall be made available for public inspection. 
 
Section 3.70.120 Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption 
in the display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 
2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance 
shall be filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published 
in a newspaper of general circulation. 
 
Section 2. That Chapter 3.68 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3. That Chapter 3.78 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. Posting 
Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the display 
case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin 
Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed 
at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation. 


	Feb 2024 PJC Agend
	Land Acknowledgement Statement
	20240108 PJC draft mins
	CommissionMerger_PJC Memo
	Communication
	Chapter 3.78 BMC.pdf
	Chapter 3.78 HUMAN WELFARE AND COMMUNITY ACTION COMMISSION
	3.78.010 Creation of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission.
	3.78.020 Term of office.
	3.78.030 Vacancy and removal.
	3.78.040 Temporary vacancies.
	3.78.050 Officers, meetings and procedures.
	3.78.060 Social welfare defined.
	3.78.070 Functions of the commission.
	3.78.080 Elections for representatives of the poor.
	3.78.090 Bylaws of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission.


	Chapter 3.68 BMC.pdf
	Chapter 3.68 PEACE AND JUSTICE COMMISSION
	3.68.010 Findings.
	3.68.020 Established--Membership--Appointment.
	3.68.030 "Peace and justice" defined.
	3.68.040 Automatic termination of appointment.
	3.68.050 Liaison representative to other City entities.
	3.68.060 Organization, meetings, rules, and procedures.
	3.68.070 Functions.


	2021-06-15 Special Agenda Packet - Council - WEB.pdf
	06-15 Special Agenda - Council
	2021-06-15 Special Item 01 Commission Reorganization


	AttachmentA_2021-06-15 Special Agenda Packet - Council - WEB
	06-15 Special Agenda - Council
	2021-06-15 Special Item 01 Commission Reorganization
	06-15 Special Communications

	HCS_013024_HWCAC_PJC_CommissionMerger



